



Lynchburg City School Board

James E. Coleman
School Board District 3

Regina T. Dolan-Sewell
School Board District 1

Mary Ann Hoss
School Board District 1

Michael J. Nilles
School Board District 3

Jennifer R. Poore
School Board District 2

Katie Snyder
School Board District 3

J. Marie Waller
School Board District 2

Thomas H. Webb
School Board District 2

Charles B. White
School Board District 1

School Administration

Scott S. Brabrand
Superintendent

John C. McClain
Assistant Superintendent of
Curriculum and Instruction

Ben W. Copeland
Assistant Superintendent of
Operations and Administration

Anthony E. Beckles, Sr.
Chief Financial Officer

Wendie L. Sullivan
Clerk

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING
April 28, 2015 5:30 p.m.
School Administration Building
Board Room

A. PUBLIC COMMENTS

- 1. Public Comments
Scott S. Brabrand. Page 1
Discussion (30 Minutes)

B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

- 1. Student Recognition
Scott S. Brabrand. Page 2
Discussion
- 2. Teacher Recruitment Campaign
Scott S. Brabrand. Page 3
Discussion

C. FINANCE REPORT

- 1. Finance Report
Anthony E. Beckles, Sr. Page 4
Discussion

D. CONSENT AGENDA

- 1. School Board Meeting Minutes: April 14, 2015 (Regular Meeting)
- 2. Personnel Report
Marie F. Gee. Page 11
Discussion/Action
- 3. Lynchburg City Schools Policy Updates
Ben W. Copeland. Page 15
Discussion/Action

E. STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS

F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

- 1. Capital Improvement Plan: Paul Laurence Dunbar Middle School for Innovation
Ben W. Copeland. Page 28
Discussion/Action
- 2. Lynchburg City School Board Policy Update
Ben W. Copeland. Page 29
Discussion

G. NEW BUSINESS

- 1. Request for Reallocation of Budget
Anthony E. Beckles, Sr.Page 40
Discussion
- 2. Implementation of Online Payment Portal
Anthony E. Beckles, Sr. Page 45
Discussion
- 3. Capital Improvement Plan: Sandusky Elementary School
Ben W. Copeland.Page 47
Discussion

H. SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS

I. BOARD COMMENTS

J. CLOSED MEETING

- 1. Notice of Closed Meeting
Scott S. Brabrand.Page 48
Discussion/Action
- 2. Certification of Closed Meeting
Scott S. Brabrand.Page 49
Discussion/Action

K. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Next School Board Meeting: Tuesday, May 5, 2015, 5:30 p.m., Board Room, School Administration Building

L. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: A-1

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent

Subject: Public Comments

Summary/Description:

In accordance with Policy BDDH Public Participation, the school board welcomes requests and comments as established in the guidelines within that policy. Individuals who wish to speak before the school board shall have an opportunity to do so at this time.

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive this agenda report as an informational item.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: B-1

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent

Subject: Student Recognition

Summary/Description:

Perrymont Elementary School students took home first place for Marketing in the Mini Economy Market Day competition in March with their product "Monster Mash Glove." Schools from all around the area competed in the event, which was held at Lynchburg College. Area business leaders judged the products.

Perrymont's 21st Century Community Learning Center students created their product during their after school program as part of a way to learn about entrepreneurship, advertising, marketing, and production. Students will be recognized by the school board during this presentation.

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive this agenda report as an informational item.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: B-2

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent

Subject: Teacher Recruitment Campaign

Summary/Description:

The school administration has developed a teacher recruitment campaign intended to reach teachers ages 27 to 50 living in big city areas in Northern Virginia and surrounding areas to come to Lynchburg to teach. The school board will receive additional information about this campaign during this presentation.

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive this agenda report as an informational item.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: C-1

Attachments:

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Anthony E. Beckles, Sr., Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Finance Report

Summary/Description:

The school administration, in accordance with the 2014-15 school operating budget, authorized, approved, and processed the necessary payments through March 31, 2015. The school administration certifies that the amounts approved are within budgetary limits and revenue.

The operating fund expenditure report summarizes the payments made through March 31, 2015, for the operating fund.

Total Operating Fund Budget	\$ 88,114,120.00
Fund Balance Return	\$ 130,000.00
Withdrawal from Textbook Reserves	\$ 777,000.00
Insurance Proceeds Reallocated	\$ 81,352.32
Restricted Donations	\$ 5,500.00
Allocation of Prior Year End Encumbrances	\$ 500,478.90
Sale of Assets, Restricted	\$ <u>3,500.00</u>
Revised Budget	\$ 89,611,951.22

Through March 31, 2015

Actual Revenue Received	\$ 54,375,900.94
Actual Expenditures	\$ 55,496,655.36
Actual Encumbered	\$ 27,336,259.60

Percent of Budget Received	60.68%
Percent of Budget Used, excluding encumbrances	61.93%

As of 03/31/15 – 9 months 75.00%

The revenue and expenditure reports detail the transactions recorded through March 31, 2015. All reports appear as attachments to the agenda report.

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive the agenda report as an informational item.

Lynchburg City Schools
 Operating Fund - Statement of Expenditures
 For the Month Ending
 March 31, 2015

	Fiscal Year 2014-15					BUDGET AVAILABLE	BUDGET % USED
	BUDGET	TRANSACTIONS	BUDGET % USED	ENCUMBRANCES			
INSTRUCTION							
FUNCTION 1100 CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION							
Personnel	46,016,529.25	26,244,242.15	57.03%	17,680,500.54	2,091,786.56		
Other	3,597,581.16	2,321,079.84	64.52%	100,582.80	1,175,918.52		
FUNCTION 1200 INST SUPPORT-STUDENT							
Personnel	3,281,195.91	2,157,861.66	65.76%	971,932.81	151,401.44		
Other	177,779.00	49,892.37	28.06%	20,324.11	107,562.52		
FUNCTION 1300 INST SUPPORT-STAFF							
Personnel	3,669,847.41	2,584,189.23	70.42%	1,101,136.10	(15,477.92)		
Other	1,645,406.21	830,728.95	50.49%	37,001.76	777,675.50		
FUNCTION 1400 INST SUPPORT-SCHOOL ADMN							
Personnel	5,036,969.16	3,567,609.79	70.83%	1,335,169.13	134,190.24		
Other	122,329.65	66,108.85	54.04%	7,694.82	48,525.98		
TOTAL INSTRUCTION	63,547,637.75	37,821,712.84	59.52%	21,254,342.07	4,471,582.84		92.96%
ADMINISTRATION							
FUNCTION 2100 ADMINISTRATION							
Personnel	2,367,295.20	1,655,244.97	69.92%	461,199.31	250,850.92		
Other	1,263,525.56	873,035.59	69.10%	173,847.84	216,642.13		
FUNCTION 2200 ATTENDANCE & HEALTH SERV							
Personnel	2,652,742.17	1,495,263.84	56.37%	921,961.58	235,516.75		
Other	75,225.00	28,708.13	38.16%	457.94	46,058.93		
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION	6,358,787.93	4,052,252.53	63.73%	1,557,466.67	749,068.73		88.22%
PUPIL TRANSPORTATION							
FUNCTION 3100 MANAGEMENT & DIRECTION							
Personnel	327,926.10	244,136.43	74.45%	84,147.90	(358.23)		
Other	23,276.00	22,466.75	96.52%	2,743.00	(1,933.75)		
FUNCTION 3200 VEHICLE OPERATION SERVICE							
Personnel	2,619,766.00	1,551,589.48	59.23%	828,851.90	239,324.62		
Other	881,900.00	584,279.22	66.25%	250,627.47	46,993.31		
FUNCTION 3300 MONITORING SERVICE							
Personnel	398,732.57	286,566.59	71.87%	180,056.70	(67,890.72)		
Other	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00		
FUNCTION 3400 VEHICLE MAINT SERVICE							
Personnel	350,627.98	264,944.68	75.56%	102,977.22	(17,293.92)		
Other	383,282.32	264,728.50	69.07%	10,207.67	108,346.15		
FUNCTION 3500 BUS PURCHASE - REGULAR							
Other	94,820.00	0.00	0.00%	83,434.00	11,386.00		
TOTAL PUPIL TRANSPORTATION	5,080,330.97	3,218,711.65	63.36%	1,543,045.86	318,573.46		93.73%
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE							
FUNCTION 4100 MANAGEMENT & DIRECTION							
Personnel	194,667.69	148,127.53	76.09%	49,864.86	(3,324.70)		
Other	120,000.00	97,147.35	80.96%	45,272.32	(22,419.67)		

Lynchburg City Schools
 Operating Fund - Statement of Expenditures
 For the Month Ending
 March 31, 2015

FUNCTION 4200 BUILDING SERVICES						
	Personnel	4,553,884.22	3,161,756.00	69.43%	1,104,608.49	287,519.73
	Other	4,757,425.37	3,646,400.05	76.65%	910,495.54	200,529.78
FUNCTION 4300 GROUNDS SERVICES						
	Personnel	245,101.40	163,340.35	66.64%	71,576.29	10,184.76
	Other	85,000.00	26,583.59	31.27%	55,082.88	3,333.53
FUNCTION 4400 EQUIPMENT SERVICES						
	Personnel	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
	Other	80,000.00	79,976.44	99.97%	0.00	23.56
FUNCTION 4500 VEHICLE SERVICES						
	Personnel	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
	Other	62,500.00	27,926.81	44.68%	114.00	34,459.19
FUNCTION 4600 SECURITY SERVICES						
	Personnel	165,445.67	12,399.35	7.49%	6,908.08	146,138.24
	Other	334,002.00	167,621.14	50.19%	26,332.21	140,048.65
FUNCTION 4700 WAREHOUSING SERVICES						
	Personnel	8,482.29	6,764.68	79.75%	0.00	1,717.61
TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE		10,606,508.64	7,538,043.29	71.07%	2,270,254.67	798,210.68
Other Non-Instructional Operations						
FUNCTION 5000 Non-Instructional Operations - Other		25,439.48	10,149.76	39.90%	2,368.98	12,920.74
TOTAL Non-Instructional Operations		25,439.48	10,149.76	39.90%	2,368.98	12,920.74
FACILITIES						
FUNCTION 6200 SITE IMPROVEMENTS		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
FUNCTION 6600 BLDG ADD & IMP SERVICES						
	Personnel	22,178.34	9,126.71	41.15%	0.00	13,051.63
	Other	29,956.00	9,956.00	33.24%	5,812.50	14,187.50
TOTAL FACILITIES		52,134.34	19,082.71	36.60%	5,812.50	27,239.13
DEBT SERVICE						
FUNCTION 7100 DEBT SERVICE - Other		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
TECHNOLOGY						
FUNCTION 8100 CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION						
	Personnel	1,504,306.92	1,108,357.34	73.68%	406,627.00	(10,677.42)
	Other	1,009,355.49	746,822.19	73.99%	27,069.22	235,464.08
FUNCTION 8200 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT						
	Personnel	394,238.79	195,921.52	49.70%	65,724.72	132,592.55
	Other	1,008,210.91	785,601.53	77.92%	203,547.91	19,061.47
TOTAL TECHNOLOGY		3,916,112.11	2,836,702.58	72.44%	702,968.85	376,440.68
CONTINGENCY RESERVES						
FUNCTION 9100 CLASSROOM INSTRUCTION		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
FUNCTION 9300 ADMINISTRATION		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
FUNCTION 9500 PUPIL TRANSPORTATION		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00
FUNCTION 9600 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE		25,000.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	25,000.00
TOTAL CONTINGENCY RESERVES		25,000.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	25,000.00
TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET		89,611,951.22	55,496,655.36	61.93%	27,336,259.60	6,779,036.26
						92.44%

Lynchburg City Schools
 Operating Fund - Statement of Revenue
 For the Month Ending
 March 31, 2015

ACCOUNT TITLE	FY 2013-14				FY 2014-15			
	REVENUE BUDGET	YTD TRANSACTIONS	BUDGET BALANCE	% RECEIVED	REVENUE BUDGET	YTD TRANSACTIONS	BUDGET BALANCE	% RECEIVED
240308 SALES TAX RECEIPTS	(9,771,846.00)	(8,622,541.20)	(1,149,304.80)	88.24%	(9,950,157.00)	(6,698,945.94)	(3,251,211.06)	67.33%
240202 BASIC SCHOOL AID	(19,245,033.00)	(19,831,810.00)	586,777.00	103.05%	(21,651,824.00)	(16,449,587.66)	(5,202,236.34)	75.97%
240207 GIFTED & TALENTED	(231,550.00)	(235,323.00)	3,773.00	101.63%	(240,997.00)	(182,455.74)	(58,541.26)	75.71%
240208 REMEDIAL EDUCATION	(1,167,820.00)	(1,186,844.00)	19,024.00	101.63%	(1,292,157.00)	(978,275.25)	(313,881.75)	75.71%
240208 REMEDIAL EDUCATION	(195,237.00)	(120,169.00)	(75,068.00)	61.55%	(123,629.00)	(61,375.12)	(62,253.88)	49.64%
240212 SPECIAL ED SOQ	(2,250,067.00)	(2,286,721.00)	36,654.00	101.63%	(2,794,545.00)	(2,115,714.24)	(678,830.76)	75.71%
240217 VOCATIONAL ED SOQ	(281,888.00)	(286,480.00)	4,592.00	101.63%	(225,615.00)	(170,810.25)	(54,804.75)	75.71%
240221 SOC SEC-INSTR	(1,328,898.00)	(1,350,547.00)	21,649.00	101.63%	(1,404,964.00)	(1,063,680.01)	(341,283.99)	75.71%
240223 VRS INSTRUCTIONAL	(2,214,831.00)	(2,250,911.00)	36,080.00	101.63%	(2,861,204.00)	(2,166,180.50)	(695,023.50)	75.71%
240241 GROUP LIFE INST	(85,573.00)	(86,967.00)	1,394.00	101.63%	(87,169.00)	(65,994.73)	(21,174.27)	75.71%
240228 READING INTERVENTN	(144,929.00)	(164,513.00)	19,584.00	113.51%	(168,326.00)	(93,180.49)	(75,145.51)	55.36%
240205 CAT-REG FOSTER	(71,786.00)	(117,687.56)	45,901.56	163.94%	(71,041.00)	0.00	(71,041.00)	0.00%
240246 CAT-HOMEBOUND	(214,961.00)	(199,896.17)	(15,064.83)	92.99%	(208,242.00)	(64,739.18)	(143,502.82)	31.09%
240248 REGIONAL TUITION	(776,368.00)	(642,299.73)	(134,068.27)	82.73%	(766,658.00)	(155,147.80)	(611,510.20)	20.24%
240265 AT RISK SOQ	(1,216,431.00)	(1,236,110.00)	19,679.00	101.62%	(1,439,822.00)	(730,077.49)	(709,744.51)	50.71%
240309 ESL	(82,660.00)	(106,224.00)	23,564.00	128.51%	(117,708.00)	(64,562.51)	(53,145.49)	54.85%
330213 SCHOOL LUNCH	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
240281 AT RISK 4 YR OLDS	(1,215,707.00)	(1,215,707.00)	0.00	100.00%	(1,059,219.00)	(528,984.00)	(530,235.00)	49.94%
240218 CTE - ADULT ED	(19,175.00)	(584.00)	(18,591.00)	0.00%	(19,175.00)	0.00	(19,175.00)	0.00%
240252 CTE EQUIPMENT	0.00	(6,655.13)	6,655.13	0.00%	0.00	(13,266.87)	13,266.87	100.00%
240253 CTE OCC PREP	(42,030.00)	(35,667.00)	(6,363.00)	84.86%	(42,990.00)	0.00	(42,990.00)	0.00%
240273 CPI HOLD HARMLESS	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
MATH/READING INSTR SPECIALISTS	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	(40,267.00)	(10,066.75)	(30,200.25)	25.00%
ADDITIONAL STATE SUPPORT	(466,336.00)	(466,336.29)	0.29	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
EARLY READING SPECIALISTS INIT	(37,214.00)	0.00	(37,214.00)	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
240275 PRIMARY CLASS SIZE	(1,570,158.00)	(1,616,146.00)	45,988.00	102.93%	(1,707,979.00)	(846,816.49)	(861,162.51)	49.58%
240214 TEXTBOOKS	(451,674.00)	(459,032.00)	7,358.00	101.63%	(493,378.00)	(373,530.01)	(119,847.99)	75.71%
SALARY SUPPLEMENT	(500,162.00)	(508,716.00)	8,554.00	101.71%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
240203 GED/ISAEP	(23,576.00)	(23,576.00)	0.00	100.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
240405 ALGEBRA READINESS	(124,221.00)	(130,376.00)	6,155.00	104.95%	(139,687.00)	(68,791.50)	(70,895.50)	49.25%
COMMONWEALTH OF VA	(43,730,131.00)	(43,187,839.08)	(542,291.92)	98.76%	(46,906,753.00)	(32,902,182.53)	(14,004,570.47)	70.14%
330201 BASIC ADULT ED.	(50,000.00)	(69,594.58)	19,594.58	139.19%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
330212 IMPACT AIDPL81-874	(6,000.00)	(7,616.99)	1,616.99	126.95%	(6,000.00)	(9,159.79)	3,159.79	152.66%
180303 MEDICAID REIMBURSE	(300,000.00)	(377,901.31)	77,901.31	125.97%	(300,000.00)	(133,886.03)	(166,113.97)	44.63%
JR ROTC	(120,000.00)	(109,144.52)	(10,855.48)	90.95%	(120,000.00)	(68,756.55)	(51,243.45)	57.30%
FEDERAL	(476,000.00)	(564,257.40)	88,257.40	118.54%	(426,000.00)	(211,802.37)	(214,197.63)	49.72%

Lynchburg City Schools
 Operating Fund - Statement of Revenue
 For the Month Ending
 March 31, 2015

	FY 2013-2014 (unaudited)				FY 2014-2015			
	REVENUE BUDGET	YTD TRANSACTIONS	BUDGET BALANCE	% RECEIVED	REVENUE BUDGET	YTD TRANSACTIONS	BUDGET BALANCE	% RECEIVED
510500 CITY OPER APPR	(38,201,147.00)	(38,201,147.00)	0.00	100.00%	(38,924,147.00)	(19,500,000.00)	(19,424,147.00)	50.10%
510500 FUND BALANCE RETURN	(507,487.00)	(507,487.00)	0.00	100.00%	(907,000.00)	(907,000.00)	0.00	100.00%
510500 USE OF RESERVES	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
510502 CITY DEBT SERV APP	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
CITY	(38,708,634.00)	(38,708,634.00)	0.00	100.00%	(39,831,147.00)	(20,407,000.00)	(19,424,147.00)	51.23%
189912 MISC REV/OTH FUNDS	0.00	(193,564.59)	193,564.59	100.00%	0.00	(34,990.58)	34,990.58	100.00%
180303 REBATES & REFUNDS	(30,000.00)	(21,421.90)	(8,578.10)	71.41%	(30,000.00)	(25,646.73)	(4,353.27)	85.49%
189903 DONATIONS & SP GF	(100.00)	(100.00)	0.00	0.00%	(5,500.00)	(5,500.00)	0.00	100.00%
189909 SALE OTHER EQUIP	0.00	(9,833.86)	9,833.86	0.00%	(3,500.00)	(13,795.02)	10,295.02	394.14%
189910 INSURANCE ADJUST	(3,000.00)	(4,114.66)	1,114.66	137.16%	(84,352.32)	(107,488.05)	23,135.73	127.43%
189912 OTHER FUNDS	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
E RATE REIMBURSEMENT	(120,000.00)	(101,994.43)	(18,005.57)	85.00%	(120,000.00)	(80,173.67)	(39,826.33)	66.81%
TRANSFER IN/OUT	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
MISCELLANEOUS	(153,100.00)	(331,029.44)	177,929.44	216.22%	(243,352.32)	(267,594.05)	24,241.73	109.96%
150201 RENTS	(98,000.00)	(123,000.00)	25,000.00	125.51%	(118,000.00)	(123,000.00)	5,000.00	104.24%
161201 TUITION DAY SCHOOL	(110,000.00)	(112,830.67)	2,830.67	102.57%	(110,000.00)	(70,134.48)	(39,865.52)	63.76%
161206 TUITION ADULT	(18,000.00)	(6,183.25)	(11,816.75)	34.35%	(18,000.00)	0.00	(18,000.00)	0.00%
161207 TUITION SUMMER SCH	(40,000.00)	(38,721.50)	(1,278.50)	96.80%	(25,000.00)	(150.00)	(24,850.00)	0.60%
161202 SPEC PUPIL FEES	(45,000.00)	(40,081.17)	(4,918.83)	89.07%	(40,000.00)	(14,679.34)	(25,320.66)	36.70%
161205 BUS RENTAL	(400,000.00)	(312,682.37)	(87,317.63)	78.17%	(400,000.00)	(220,678.94)	(179,321.06)	55.17%
190101 TUIT FM OTH CO/CY	(634,620.00)	(651,421.70)	16,801.70	102.65%	(634,620.00)	0.00	(634,620.00)	0.00%
161201 DUAL ENROLLMENT	(85,000.00)	(120,367.50)	35,367.50	141.61%	(85,000.00)	0.00	(85,000.00)	0.00%
PRINT SHOP	(100,000.00)	(76,650.75)	(23,349.25)	76.65%	(100,000.00)	(49,224.93)	(50,775.07)	49.22%
SCHOOL NUT UTILITIES	(98,500.00)	(86,976.73)	(11,523.27)	88.30%	(98,500.00)	(73,126.80)	(25,373.20)	74.24%
FACILITY RENTALS	(60,020.00)	(61,317.26)	1,297.26	102.16%	(75,000.00)	(36,327.50)	(38,672.50)	48.44%
CHARGES FOR SERVICES	(1,689,140.00)	(1,630,232.90)	(58,907.10)	96.51%	(1,704,120.00)	(587,321.99)	(1,116,798.01)	34.46%
150101 INTEREST-BNK DPST	0.00	0.00	0.00	100.00%	(100.00)	0.00	(100.00)	100.00%
USE OF MONEY								
LEASE PURCHASE PROCEEDS	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%
DESIGNATION - ENCUMBRANCES	(36,798.29)	0.00	(36,798.29)	0.00%	(500,478.90)	0.00	(500,478.90)	0.00%
TOTAL OPERATING FUND	(84,793,803.29)	(84,421,992.82)	(335,012.18)	99.56%	(89,611,951.22)	(54,375,900.94)	(34,735,571.38)	60.68%

Original budget	\$ 84,249,418.00
Fund Balance Return	\$ 507,487.00
Restricted Donation Received	\$ 100.00
Lease Purchase Funds	\$ -
Designation - Prior Year Encumb	\$ 36,798.29
Adjusted Budget	\$ 84,793,803.29

Original budget	\$ 88,114,120.00
Fund Balance Return/Textbooks	\$ 907,000.00
Restricted Donation Received	\$ 5,500.00
Insurance proceeds allocated	\$ 81,352.32
Restricted Sale of Assets (CTE)	\$ 3,500.00
Designation - Prior Year Encumb	\$ 500,478.90
Adjusted Budget	\$ 89,611,951.22

FY2014-2015 REVISED REVENUE BUDGET
As of March 31, 2015

ACCOUNT TITLE	ORIGINAL	REVISED		CHANGE BETWEEN		
	REVENUE BUDGET As of 7/1/2014	STATE REVENUE BUDGET As of 12/17/2014	YTD TRANSACTIONS	BUDGET BALANCE	% RECEIVED	ORG & REVISED REV BUDGET INCREASE (DECREASE)
COMMONWEALTH OF VA REVENUE						
240308 SALES TAX RECEIPTS	(9,950,157.00)	(9,907,302.00)	(6,698,945.94)	(3,208,356.06)	67.62%	(42,855.00)
240202 BASIC SCHOOL AID	(21,651,824.00)	(22,074,941.00)	(16,449,587.66)	(5,625,353.34)	74.52%	423,117.00
240207 GIFTED & TALENTED	(240,997.00)	(244,413.00)	(182,455.74)	(61,957.26)	74.65%	3,416.00
240208 REMEDIAL EDUCATION	(1,292,157.00)	(1,310,472.00)	(978,275.25)	(332,196.75)	74.65%	18,315.00
240208 REMEDIAL EDUCATION	(123,629.00)	(105,619.00)	(61,375.12)	(44,243.88)	58.11%	(18,010.00)
240212 SPECIAL ED SOQ	(2,794,545.00)	(2,834,156.00)	(2,115,714.24)	(718,441.76)	74.65%	39,611.00
240217 VOCATIONAL ED SOQ	(225,615.00)	(228,813.00)	(170,810.25)	(58,002.75)	74.65%	3,198.00
240221 SOC SEC-INSTR	(1,404,964.00)	(1,424,878.00)	(1,063,680.01)	(361,197.99)	74.65%	19,914.00
240223 VRS INSTRUCTIONAL	(2,861,204.00)	(2,901,759.00)	(2,166,180.50)	(735,578.50)	74.65%	40,555.00
240241 GROUP LIFE INST	(87,169.00)	(88,405.00)	(65,994.73)	(22,410.27)	74.65%	1,236.00
240228 READING INTERVENTN	(168,326.00)	(186,361.00)	(93,180.49)	(93,180.51)	50.00%	18,035.00
240205 CAT-REG FOSTER	(71,041.00)	(134,062.00)	0.00	(134,062.00)	0.00%	63,021.00
240246 CAT-HOMEBOUND	(208,242.00)	(100,051.00)	(64,739.18)	(35,311.82)	64.71%	(108,191.00)
240248 REGIONAL TUITION	(766,658.00)	(714,954.00)	(155,147.80)	(559,806.20)	21.70%	(51,704.00)
240265 AT RISK SOQ	(1,439,822.00)	(1,460,155.00)	(730,077.49)	(730,077.51)	50.00%	20,333.00
240309 ESL	(117,708.00)	(129,125.00)	(64,562.51)	(64,562.49)	50.00%	11,417.00
330213 SCHOOL LUNCH	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
240281 AT RISK 4 YR OLDS - VPI	(1,059,219.00)	(1,057,968.00)	(528,984.00)	(528,984.00)	50.00%	(1,251.00)
240218 CTE - ADULT ED	(19,175.00)	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	(19,175.00)
240252 CTE EQUIPMENT	0.00	0.00	(13,266.87)	13,266.87	0.00%	0.00
240253 CTE EDUCATION	(42,990.00)	(48,230.00)	0.00	(48,230.00)	0.00%	5,240.00
SUPPLEMENTAL SUPPORT	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
ADDITIONAL STATE SUPPORT	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
EARLY READIG SPECIALISTS INITIA1	(40,267.00)	(40,267.00)	0.00	(40,267.00)	0.00%	0.00
240275 PRIMARY CLASS SIZE	(1,707,979.00)	(1,693,633.00)	(846,816.49)	(846,816.51)	50.00%	(14,346.00)
240214 TEXTBOOKS	(493,378.00)	(500,371.00)	(373,530.01)	(126,840.99)	74.65%	6,993.00
SALARY SUPPLEMENT	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
240203 GED/ISAP	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
240405 ALGEBRA READINESS	(139,687.00)	(137,583.00)	(68,791.50)	(68,791.50)	50.00%	(2,104.00)
COMMONWEALTH OF VA	(46,906,753.00)	(47,323,518.00)	(32,892,115.78)	(14,431,402.22)	69.50%	416,765.00
FEDERAL REVENUE						
330201 BASIC ADULT ED.	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
330212 IMPACT AIDPL81-874	(6,000.00)	(6,000.00)	(9,159.79)	3,159.79	152.66%	0.00
180303 MEDICAID REIMBURSE	(300,000.00)	(300,000.00)	(133,886.03)	(166,113.97)	44.63%	0.00
JR ROTC	(120,000.00)	(120,000.00)	(68,756.55)	(51,243.45)	57.30%	0.00
FEDERAL	(426,000.00)	(426,000.00)	(211,802.37)	(214,197.63)	49.72%	0.00
CITY APPROPRIATIONS						
510500 CITY OPER APPR	(38,924,147.00)	(38,924,147.00)	(19,500,000.00)	(19,424,147.00)	50.10%	0.00
510500 FUND BALANCE RETURN	(907,000.00)	(907,000.00)	(907,000.00)	0.00	100.00%	0.00
510500 USE OF RESERVES	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
510502 CITY DEBT SERV APP	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
CITY	(39,831,147.00)	(39,831,147.00)	(20,407,000.00)	(19,424,147.00)	51.23%	0.00
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE						
189912 MISC REV/OTH FUNDS	0.00	(38,000.00)	(34,990.58)	(3,009.42)	100.00%	38,000.00
180303 REBATES & REFUNDS	(30,000.00)	(30,000.00)	(25,646.73)	(4,353.27)	85.49%	0.00
189903 DONATIONS & SP GF	(5,500.00)	(5,500.00)	(5,500.00)	0.00	0.00%	0.00
189909 SALE OTHER EQUIP	(3,500.00)	(16,000.00)	(13,795.02)	(2,204.98)	0.00%	12,500.00
189910 INSURANCE ADJUST	(84,352.32)	(110,000.00)	(107,488.05)	(2,511.95)	97.72%	25,647.68
189912 OTHER FUNDS	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
E RATE REIMBURSEMENT	(120,000.00)	(120,000.00)	(80,173.67)	(39,826.33)	66.81%	0.00
TRANSFER IN/OUT	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
MISCELLANEOUS	(243,352.32)	(319,500.00)	(267,594.05)	(51,905.95)	83.75%	76,147.68

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

150201 RENTS	(118,000.00)	(123,000.00)	(123,000.00)	0.00	100.00%	5,000.00
161201 TUITION DAY SCHOOL	(110,000.00)	(90,000.00)	(70,134.48)	(19,865.52)	77.93%	(20,000.00)
161206 TUITION ADULT	(18,000.00)	(11,000.00)	0.00	(11,000.00)	0.00%	(7,000.00)
161207 TUITION SUMMER SCH	(25,000.00)	0.00	(150.00)	150.00	#DIV/0!	(25,000.00)
161202 SPEC PUPIL FEES	(40,000.00)	(40,000.00)	(14,679.34)	(25,320.66)	36.70%	0.00
161205 BUS RENTAL	(400,000.00)	(325,000.00)	(220,678.94)	(104,321.06)	67.90%	(75,000.00)
190101 TUIT FM OTH CO/CY	(634,620.00)	(400,000.00)	0.00	(400,000.00)	0.00%	(234,620.00)
161201 DUAL ENROLLMENT	(85,000.00)	(125,000.00)	0.00	(125,000.00)	0.00%	40,000.00
PRINT SHOP	(100,000.00)	(75,000.00)	(49,224.93)	(25,775.07)	65.63%	(25,000.00)
SCHOOL NUT UTILITIES	(98,500.00)	(98,500.00)	(73,126.80)	(25,373.20)	74.24%	0.00
FACILITY RENTALS	(75,000.00)	(60,000.00)	(36,327.50)	(23,672.50)	60.55%	(15,000.00)
CHARGES FOR SERVICES	(1,704,120.00)	(1,347,500.00)	(587,321.99)	(760,178.01)	43.59%	(356,620.00)

150101 INTEREST-BNK DPST	(100.00)	0.00	0.00	0.00	100.00%	(100.00)
USE OF MONEY						

LEASE PURCHASE PROCEEDS	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00
DESIGNATION - ENCUMBRANCES	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00

TOTAL OPERATING FUND	(89,111,472.32)	(89,247,665.00)	(54,365,834.19)	(34,881,830.81)	60.92%	136,192.68
-----------------------------	------------------------	------------------------	------------------------	------------------------	---------------	-------------------

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER)

ORIGINAL BUDGET	136,192.68
------------------------	-------------------

Note

Bold accounts are affected by changes in ADM

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: D-2

Attachments: Yes

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Marie F. Gee, Director of Personnel

Subject: Personnel Report

Summary/Description:

The personnel recommendations for April 14 – 28, 2015, appear as an attachment to this agenda report.

Disposition: **Action**
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board approve the personnel recommendations for April 14 – 28, 2015.

NAME	COLLEGE	DEGREE/ EXPERIENCE	SCHOOL/ ASSIGNMENT	EFFECTIVE DATE
RESIGNATIONS:				
Burrell, Tracy	University of Virginia	M.Ed./11 yrs. (Lv. 10, 3)	Dunbar Middle School Social Studies	06-06-15
Clarke, Amy	Liberty University	B.A./1 yr. (Lv. 0, 3)	T.C. Miller Elementary First Grade	06-06-15
Corkill, Brice	Liberty University	B.A./1 yr. (Lv. 0, 4)	T.C. Miller Elementary Fourth Grade	06-06-15
Dilling, Rebecca	Liberty University	Ed.S./21 yrs. (Lv. 20, 3)	Bedford Hills Elementary Special Education	06-06-15
Hayes, Tracie	Lynchburg College	M.Ed./30 yrs. (Lv. 29, 3)	Fort Hill Community School Science	06-06-15
Layer, Brenda	University of N. Colorado	M.A./9 yrs. (Lv. 8, 3)	R. S. Payne Elementary Reading Specialist (PT)	06-06-15
Reed, Lucian	Virginia Tech University	B.A./12 yrs. (Lv. 11, 4)	Sandusky Middle School Science	06-06-15
Shepard, Rebecca	Ithaca College	B.A./7 yrs. (Lv. 6, 3)	R.S. Payne Elementary Music	06-06-15
Strickland, Amanda	Mount Holyoke	B.A./4 yrs. (Lv. 3, 3)	Heritage High School Science	06-06-15
Tallman, Brienne	Clemson University	B.A./5 yrs. (Lv. 4, 3)	Heritage Elementary Fifth Grade	06-06-15
Wray, Brian	Lynchburg College	M.A./24 yrs. (Lv. 16, 4)	Curriculum & Instruction Director of Instruction	06-30-15
Zuniga, Jennifer	Averett University	M.Ed./19 yrs. (Lv. 18, 3)	Linkhorne Elementary Kindergarten	06-06-15

RETIREMENTS:

Berry, Charles	Lynchburg College	B.A./37 yrs. (Lv. 35, 4)	E.C. Glass High School Athletic Director	06-19-15
-------------------	----------------------	-----------------------------	---	----------

NAME	COLLEGE	DEGREE/ EXPERIENCE	SCHOOL/ ASSIGNMENT	EFFECTIVE DATE
RETIREMENTS: (continued)				
Blanchard, Deliece	University of Virginia	M.A./23 yrs. (Lv. 22, 3)	E.C. Glass High School Strings (PT)	06-06-15
Brown, Carolyn	University of Virginia	M.Ed/36 yrs. (Lv. 35, 1)	Sandusky Elementary First Grade	06-06-15
Cooke, Dennis	Garnder-Webb University	M.S./17 yrs. (Lv. 16, 4)	Linkhorne Middle School Special Education	06-60-15
Duperior, Richard		USMC/9 yrs. (Lv. 30, 4)	Heritage High School MCROTC	06-30-15
Falls, Julia	The Citadel	M.Ed./34 yrs. (Lv. 33, 3)	Linkhorne Elementary Special Education	06-06-15
Gabathuler, Michaela	Lynchburg College	M.A./19 yrs. (Lv. 18, 3)	E.C. Glass High School Foreign Language	06-06-15
Hamilton, Carla	Duquesne University	M.Ed./31 yrs. (Lv. 30, 1)	Perrymont Elementary First Grade	06-06-15
Scarborough, Derrick	Lynchburg College	M.A./32 yrs. (Lv. 16, 2)	Linkhorne Middle School Principal	06-30-15
Secret, Belinda	Park College	B.A./ 32 yrs. (Lv. 31, 3)	Bedford Hills Elementary Third Grade	06-06-15
Snyder, Jane	Lynchburg College	M.Ed./26 yrs. (Lv. 25, 3)	Sandusky Middle School Special Education	06-06-15
Strong, Clarence	Lynchburg College	M.A./26 yrs. (Lv. 25, 4)	Linkhorne Middle School Special Education	06-06-15
Swain, Diane	Lynchburg College	M.Ed./47 yrs. (Lv. 15, 2)	Sheffield Elementary Principal	06-30-15
Templeton, David	Lynchburg College	M.Ed./33 yrs. (Lv. 32, 4)	E.C. Glass High School Science	06-06-15
Templeton, Gail	Lynchburg College	M.Ed./29 yrs. (Lv. 28, 3)	Linkhorne Middle School English	06-06-15

NAME	COLLEGE	DEGREE/ EXPERIENCE	SCHOOL/ ASSIGNMENT	EFFECTIVE DATE
-------------	----------------	-------------------------------	-------------------------------	---------------------------

RETIREMENTS: (continued)

Tomlinson, Jill	Lynchburg College	M.Ed./39 yrs. (Lv. 35, 3)	LAUREL Regional School Teacher of the Visually Impaired (PT)	06-06-15
Young, Gail	James Madison University	B.S./39 yrs. (Lv. 35, 3)	Heritage Elementary Fifth Grade	06-06-15

LEAVE OF ABSENCE:

Bandy, Kristin	Liberty University	B.A./2 yrs. (Lv. 1, 3)	Linkhorne Elementary ESL	06-06-15
-------------------	-----------------------	---------------------------	-----------------------------	----------

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: D-3

Attachments: Yes

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Ben W. Copeland, Assistant Superintendent of Operations and Administration

Subject: Lynchburg City School Board Policy Updates

Summary/Description:

A highlight of membership with the Virginia School Boards Association (VSBA) is the regular policy updates reviewed by legal counsel that reflect the latest changes in state and federal laws and regulations. A few policies are revised for editorial reasons or to correct technical errors. Listed below are several new policy revisions from the VSBA February 2015 update. All policies appear as attachments to the agenda report.

BBE	Unexpired Term Fulfillment
BCF	Advisory Committees to the School Board
BDA	Regular School Board Meetings
CBA	Qualifications and Duties for the Superintendent
CBB	Appointment and Term of the Division Superintendent
KK	School Visitors

Disposition: **Action**
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board approve the revisions to the policies listed above.

UNEXPIRED TERM FULFILLMENT

Vacancies occurring in the membership of the School Board ~~shall be~~ *{are}* filled as provided by law.

Adopted by School Board: June 4, 2013

Legal Ref.: Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ 22.1-50*{, 22.1-53}*.

Code of Ordinances of the City of Lynchburg, Virginia. § 32-16. Board of School Trustees--Appointment and Term

ADVISORY COMMITTEES TO THE SCHOOL BOARD

~~It is the duty of the~~ ***{The}*** School Board ~~to~~ ***{may}*** appoint advisory councils or committees of citizens of the school division for consultation with reference to specific matters pertaining to local schools. In addition, pursuant to ~~the Code of Virginia, Board of Education regulations, and federal law,~~ the School Board shall ~~establish~~ ***{establishes}*** advisory committees for the following programs: special education and career and technical education. These committees shall serve without compensation for one-year terms.

A School Health Advisory Board (SHAB) will be established. The School Health Advisory Board shall have fourteen (14) members. Six (6) staff members and a student shall be appointed by the Superintendent. Seven (7) lay members shall be appointed by the school board. The SHAB will assist with the development of health policy in the school division and the evaluation of the status of school health, health education, the school environment, and health services. The SHAB will hold meetings at least semi-annually and will annually report on the status and needs of student health in the division to any relevant school, the School Board, the Virginia Department of Health, and the Virginia Department of Education.

The School Board may request that the SHAB recommend to the School Board procedures relating to children with acute or chronic illnesses or conditions, including, but not limited to, appropriate emergency procedures for any life-threatening conditions and designation of school personnel to implement the appropriate emergency procedures.

A General Career-Technical Advisory Committee will be established to report and make recommendations to the school board regarding career-technical programs and policy. Each of the 14 program areas in Career-Technical Education has an advisory committee which sends a representative to serve on the General Career-Technical Advisory Committee. This committee meets 4 to 6 times per year.

~~A Key Communicators Advisory~~ ***{An Equity Task Force}*** Committee will be established to address issues in five categories: discipline, staffing and recruitment, cultural diversity, extra-curricular programs, and advanced courses, and to provide communication between the Superintendent and parents. The group will be comprised of working and retired professionals, concerned community citizens, school board members, and school division staff. Lay members shall serve a three-year term and may be appointed for an additional three-year term of service.

A Special Education Advisory Committee will be established annually according to state regulations. The committee will meet a minimum of four times per year and members will serve two-year terms.

Adopted: February 18, 2014

Legal Refs.: 20 U.S.C. §§ 5964(a)(6), 6318(e)(12), 7115(a)(1)(E).

Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ 22.1-18.1, 22.1-86, 22.1-275.1

8 VAC 20-40-60.

8 VAC 20-81-230.D.

8 VAC 20-120-50.

{8 VAC 20-131-270.}

Cross Ref.:	EB	School Crisis, Emergency Management, and Medical Emergency Response Plan
	EBB	Threat Assessment Teams
	<i>{IC/ID</i>	<i>School Year/School Day}</i>
	IGBB	Programs for Gifted Students
	<i>{KC</i>	<i>Community Involvement in Decision Making}</i>

REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETINGS

The School Board ~~will transact~~ ***{transacts}*** all business at official School Board meetings. The School Board ~~will~~ ***{does}*** not vote by secret or written ballot. ~~Except as otherwise provided by law, all meetings of the School Board shall be open to the public.~~ ***{However, nothing prohibits separately contacting the membership, or any part thereof, of the School Board for the purpose of ascertaining a member’s position with respect to the transaction of public business, whether such contact is done in person, by telephone or by electronic communication, provided the contact is done on a basis that does not constitute a meeting under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act.}***

All meetings of the School Board ~~shall be~~ ***{are}*** open ***{to the public}***, except as otherwise permitted by law.

No meeting ~~shall be~~ ***{is}*** conducted through telephonic, video, electronic or other communication means where the members are not physically assembled to discuss or transact public business, except as provided in Policy BDD Electronic Participation in Meetings from Remote Locations.

The School Board ~~will give~~ ***{gives}*** notice of its meetings in accordance with Policy BDDA Notification of School Board Meetings.

At least one copy of all agenda packets and, unless exempt, all materials furnished to the members of the School Board for a meeting ~~shall be~~ ***{are}*** made available for public inspection at the same time such documents are furnished to the members of the School Board.

Any person may photograph, film, record or otherwise reproduce any portion of an open meeting. The School Board may adopt rules governing the placement and use of equipment necessary for broadcasting, photographing, filming or recording a meeting to prevent interference with the proceedings, but ~~shall~~ ***{does}*** not prohibit or otherwise prevent any person from photographing, filming, recording, or otherwise reproducing any portion of an open meeting. The School Board ~~will~~ ***{does}*** not conduct any open meeting in any building or facility where such recording devices are prohibited.

{Minutes of all regular School Board meetings are recorded in accordance with Policy BDDG Minutes.}

Adopted by School Board: June 4, 2013

Legal Ref.: Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ 2.2-3707, 2.2-3710, 22.1-72 ***{and 22.1-74}***.

Cross Refs.: KC Community Involvement in Decision Making

BCA	Board Organizational Meetings
BDD	Electronic Participation in Meetings from Remote Locations
BDDA	Notification of School Board Meetings
BDDG	Minutes

QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES FOR THE SUPERINTENDENT

I. QUALIFICATIONS

1. The candidate for Superintendent shall meet the qualifications as set forth in State Board of Education Regulations Governing Licensure of School Personnel.
2. Preference shall be given to those applicants whose experience and education demonstrate a balance between instruction and business administration.
3. Eligibility shall be limited to individuals whose records indicate they possess the following attributes:
 - a. Good character
 - b. Management talent
 - c. Leadership
 - d. Knowledge of school law
 - e. Understanding of special education
 - f. Outstanding ability in career and technical and academic education.

The position of Superintendent is a performance-based position with remuneration directly dependent on the achievement of the performance goals and standards established by the School Board and the School Board's evaluation of the Superintendent.

II. MAJOR DUTIES

1. Serves as chief executive officer of the School Board.
 - A. Attends School Board meetings.
 - B. Implements policies of the School Board.
 - C. Reports to the School Board about the status of programs, personnel and operations of the schools.
 - D. Recommends actions to the School Board.
 - E. Communicates as liaison between the School Board and school personnel.
 - F. Assists the chairman in developing and distributing notices and agenda of meetings of the School Board.
2. Acts as the educational leader of the schools.
 - A. Supervises the principals and Assistant Superintendents.
 - B. Oversees planning and evaluation of curriculum and instruction.
 - C. Develops for approval by the School Board procedures for adopting textbooks and other instruction materials.

- D. Visits schools on a regular basis.
 - E. Maintains a current knowledge of developments in curriculum and instruction.
3. Enforces school laws and regulations.
- A. Observes such directions and regulations as the Superintendent of Public Instruction or Board of Education may prescribe.
 - B. Makes reports to the Superintendent of Public Instruction whenever required.
 - C. Distributes promptly all reports, forms, laws and regulations which may be received from the Superintendent of Public Instruction.
 - D. Enforces school laws, regulations and decisions of the Superintendent of Public Instruction and of the Board of Education.
 - E. Prepares and maintains administrative procedures, guidelines and regulations to be used to implement School Board policy. If Board action is required by law or the Board has specifically asked that certain types of regulations be given prior Board approval, these regulations and guidelines shall be placed in the School Board manual. The administrative procedures, guidelines and regulations shall be discussed with the staff and made available for their information.
4. Oversees staff personnel management.
- A. Organizes recruitment of personnel.
 - B. Reassigns personnel to schools and offices.
 - C. Insures administration of personnel policies and programs.
 - D. Supervises evaluation of personnel.
 - E. Provides for maintenance of up-to-date job descriptions for all personnel.
5. Oversees facility management.
- A. Prepares long and short-range plans for facilities and sites.
 - B. Insures the maintenance of school property and safety of personnel and property.
 - C. Inspects school property on a regular basis.
 - D. Approves the utilization of school property.
 - E. Monitors any construction, renovation and demolition of school facilities.

- F. Represents the schools before local or state agencies which control building requirements or provide financing for buildings.
 - G. Closes public school buildings which appear to him to be unfit for occupancy.
6. Oversees financial management.
- A. Prepares budget for School Board approval.
 - B. Insures that expenditures are within the limits approved by the School Board.
 - C. Reports to the School Board on financial condition of the schools.
 - D. Establishes procedures for procurement of equipment and supplies.
 - E. Ensures that an accurate record of all receipts and disbursements of school funds is kept.
7. Directs community relations activities.
- A. Articulates educational programs and needs to the community.
 - B. Responds to concerns expressed in the community.
 - C. Maintains contact with the news media.
 - D. Participates in community affairs.
 - E. Involves the community in planning and problem solving for the schools.
8. Oversees pupil personnel services.
- A. Monitors pupil personnel services.
 - B. Insures adequate pupil record system.
 - C. Implements policies and programs relating to behavior and discipline of pupils.
 - D. Maintains programs for health and safety of pupils.
 - E. Communicates as liaison between schools and community social agencies.

Adopted: June 17, 2014

Legal Ref.: Constitution of Virginia, article VIII, § 5c.

Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ 22.1-58, 22.1-59, 22.1-68, 22.1-69, 22.1-136{; 22.1-253.13:7}.

{8 VAC 20-22-50.

8 VAC 20-22-600.}

8 VAC 20-390-10.

8 VAC 20-390-40.

{8 VAC 20-390-50.}

8 VAC 20-390-60.

8 VAC 20-390-70.

8 VAC 20-390-80.

{8 VAC 20-390-90.

8 VAC 20-390-100.

8 VAC 20-390-110.}

APPOINTMENT AND TERM OF THE ~~DIVISION~~ SUPERINTENDENT

The School Board will appoint *{appoints}* the ~~division~~ Superintendent *{from the list of eligibles certified by the Board of Education}* and determine *{determines}* the term of employment as set forth in State law. *{The Superintendent's term expires on June 30. The Superintendent serves an initial term of not less than two years nor more than four years. At the expiration of the initial term, the Superintendent is eligible to hold office for the term specified by the School Board, not to exceed four years.}*

If the School Board fails to appoint a division Superintendent within 180 days of a vacancy, the Virginia Board of Education will appoint a Superintendent for the division. If the School Board has not appointed a Superintendent within 120 days of a vacancy, it will submit a written report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction demonstrating its efforts to make an appointment and containing a status report with a timeline for making the appointment prior to the 180-day deadline. If the School Board does not appoint a Superintendent within 180 days of a vacancy, it will immediately notify the Virginia Board of Education, in writing, of its failure to do so. Within 30 days of the 180th day after the vacancy occurs, the School Board will submit, in writing, its preferred candidate(s), not to exceed three, for the position. The Virginia Board of Education may consider these candidates and other eligible individuals. The Virginia Board of Education may authorize the State Superintendent of Public Instruction to conduct the search for a division Superintendent.

If the Virginia Board of Education appoints a ~~division~~ Superintendent, the contract for the Superintendent will be negotiated by the School Board.

Adopted: June 17, 2014

Legal Refs.: Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ *{22.1-58,}* 22.1-60, 22.1-61.

~~§ VAC 20-22-600.~~

Procedures for Appointment of a School Division Superintendent by the Virginia Board of Education (adopted by the Virginia Board of Education March 22, 2006) (available at http://www.pen.k12.va.us/VDOE/VA_Board/Meetings/2006/mar22min.pdf)

*{Cross Refs.: CBA Qualifications and Duties of the Superintendent
CBD Superintendent's Compensation and Benefits
CBG Evaluations of the Superintendent}*

SCHOOL VISITORS

Generally

Visitors are welcome in the schools as long as their presence is not disruptive. Upon arriving at a school, all visitors must report to the administrative office. Potential visitors, including parents, who are registered sex offenders, should consult Policy KN Sex Offender Registry Notification and Policy KNA Violent Sex Offenders on School Property before arriving at school property or school sponsored activities. The school division expects mutual respect, civility, and orderly conduct from all individuals on school property and at school events. Unauthorized persons, including suspended and expelled students, will be requested to leave school grounds by the building administrator. ***{Unauthorized persons who fail to leave the school grounds or school activity as requested will be considered trespassers. The School Board authorizes the Superintendent to take all necessary actions regarding the safety, order and preservation of the educational environment on School Board property or at school division sponsored activities. Law enforcement may be called to enforce this policy.}***

Anyone, including students, who enters a school at nighttime without the consent of an authorized person except to attend an approved meeting or service or who enters or remains on any school property, including school buses, in violation of (i) any direction to vacate the property by an authorized individual or (ii) any posted notice which contains such information, posted at a place where it reasonably may be seen may be prosecuted.

Parents

Parents are encouraged to visit the schools on scheduled days for conferences with teachers, assemblies, PTA meetings, volunteer service, and other school programs. Noncustodial parents shall not be ***{are not}*** denied, solely on the basis of their noncustodial status, the opportunity to participate in any of the student's school or day care activities in which such participation is supported or encouraged by the policies of the School Board.

Board Members

Periodically, board members may visit schools within the division. The purpose of these visits will be ***{is}*** to maintain contact with building employees and increase understanding of actual educational practices. ***{School Board members follow the same procedures applicable to all other visitors when visiting a school.}***

Adopted: February 18, 2014

Legal Ref.: Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ 18.2-128; 18.2-415, 22.1-79.

Cross Refs.:	DJG	Vendor Relations
	ECA	Inventory and Reporting of Loss or Damage
	IGBC	Parental Involvement

KGB	Public Conduct on School Property
KN	Sex Offender Registry Notification
KNA	Violent Sex Offenders on School Property

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: F-1

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Ben W. Copeland, Assistant Superintendent of Operations and Administration

Subject: Paul Laurence Dunbar Middle School for Innovation Central Building
Roof Replacement

Summary/Description:

The capital improvement plan includes \$400,000 in construction funding for replacement of the Paul Laurence Dunbar Middle School for Innovation central building roof. The City of Lynchburg Office of Procurement and Purchasing has received bids on the project.

A total of four bids for the Dunbar roof replacement project was received. The school administration recommends W. A. Lynch Roofing Co. based on their base bid of \$447,814 which was the lowest bid. All bids received are listed below. Additional funding in the amount of \$47,814 will need to be transferred from the roof contingency project.

BIDDER	AAR of North Carolina, Inc.	North Am Roofing	Roofing Solutions	W. A. Lynch
BASE BID	\$645,400	\$543,818	\$491,179	\$447,814
ALTERNATE	\$30,520	\$18,124	\$19,750	\$15,000

Disposition: **Action**
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board authorize the school administration to enter into a contract in the amount of \$447,814 with W. A. Lynch for the replacement of the central building roof at Paul Laurence Dunbar Middle School for Innovation and approve the transfer of \$47,814 from the Roof Contingency Project funds to the Paul Laurence Dunbar Middle School for Innovation Central Building Roof Project.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: F-2

Attachments: Yes

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Ben W. Copeland, Assistant Superintendent of Operations and Administration

Subject: Lynchburg City School Board Policy Updates

Summary/Description:

A highlight of membership with the Virginia School Boards Association (VSBA) is the regular policy updates reviewed by legal counsel that reflect the latest changes in state and federal laws and regulations. A few policies are revised for editorial reasons or to correct technical errors. Listed below is a new policy revision from the VSBA May 2013 and February 2015 update. The policy appears as an attachment to the agenda report.

BBFA School Board Members Conflict of Interest

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on: 05/05/15

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive this agenda report as an informational item and consider action at the school board meeting on May 5, 2015.

~~SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS~~ CONFLICT OF INTEREST ***{INTERESTS AND DISCLOSURE OF ECONOMIC INTERESTS}***

A. Purpose

The Lynchburg City School Board seeks, through the adoption of this policy, to assure that the judgment of its members, officers and employees will be guided by a policy that defines and prohibits inappropriate conflicts and requires disclosure of economic interests, as defined by the General Assembly in the State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act.

B. Areas of Regulation

The State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act establishes five principal areas of regulation applicable to board members, officers, and employees of the Lynchburg City School Division. They are:

- Special anti-nepotism rules relating to School Board members and superintendents of schools.
- General rules governing public conduct by School Board members regarding acceptance of gifts and favors.
- Prohibited conduct regarding contracts.
- Required conduct regarding transactions.
- Disclosures required from School Board members.

C. Definitions

"Advisory agency" means any board, commission, committee or post which does not exercise any sovereign power or duty, but is appointed by a governmental agency or officer or is created by law for the purpose of making studies or recommendations, or advising or consulting with a governmental agency.

"Affiliated business entity relationship" means a relationship, other than a parent-subsidary relationship, that exists when

- one business entity has a controlling ownership interest in the other business entity;
- a controlling owner in one entity is also a controlling owner in the other entity; or
- there is shared management or control between the business entities.

Factors that may be considered in determining the existence of an affiliated business entity relationship include that the same person or substantially the same person owns or manages the two entities, there are common or commingled funds or assets, the business entities share the use

of the same offices or employees, or otherwise share activities, resources or personnel on a regular basis, or there is otherwise a close working relationship between the entities.

"Business" means any individual or entity carrying on a business or profession, whether or not for profit.

"Contract" means any agreement to which a governmental agency is a party, or any agreement on behalf of a governmental agency which involves the payment of money appropriated by the General Assembly or political subdivision, whether or not such agreement is executed in the name of the Commonwealth, or some political subdivision of it.

"Council" means the Virginia Conflict of Interest and Ethics Advisory Council established in Va. Code § 30-355.

"Employee" means all persons employed by a governmental or advisory agency.

"Financial institution" means any bank, trust company, savings institution, industrial loan association, consumer finance company, credit union, broker-dealer as defined in subsection A of Va. Code § 13.1- 501, or investment company or advisor registered under the federal Investment Advisors Act or Investment Company Act of 1940.

"Gift" means any gratuity, favor, discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan forbearance, or other item having monetary value. It includes services as well as gifts of transportation, local travel, lodgings, and meals, whether provided in-kind, by purchase of a ticket, payment in advance or reimbursement after the expense has been incurred. "Gift" does not include any offer of a ticket, coupon, or other admission or pass unless the ticket, coupon, admission, or pass is used; honorary degrees; any athletic, merit, or need-based scholarship or any other financial aid awarded by a public or private school, institution of higher education, or other educational program pursuant to such school, institution or program's financial aid standards and procedures applicable to the general public; a campaign contribution properly received and reported pursuant to Va. Code § 24.2-945 et seq.; any gift related to the private profession or occupation of an officer or employee or of a member of the officer or employee's immediate family; or gifts from relatives or personal friends. For the purpose of this definition, "relative" means the donee's spouse, child, uncle, aunt, niece, or nephew; a person to whom the donee is engaged to be married; the donee's or his spouse's parent, grandparent, grandchild, brother, or sister; or the donee's brother's or sister's spouse. For the purpose of this definition, "personal friend" does not include any person that the officer or employee knows or has reason to know is (a) a lobbyist registered pursuant to Va. Code § 2.2-418 et seq.; (b) a lobbyist's principal as defined in Va. Code § 2.2-419; or (c) a person, organization or business who is a party to or is seeking to become a party to a contract with the School Board. For purposes of this definition, "person, organization, or business" includes individuals who are officers, directors or owners of or who have a controlling ownership interest in such organization or business.

"Governmental agency" means each component part of the legislative, executive or judicial branches of state and local government, including each office, department, authority, post,

commission, committee, and each institution or board created by law to exercise some regulatory or sovereign power or duty as distinguished from purely advisory powers or duties. Corporations organized or controlled by the Virginia Retirement System are "governmental agencies" for purposes of this policy.

"Immediate family" means (i) a spouse and (ii) any child who resides in the same household as the officer or employee and who is a dependent of the officer or employee.

"Officer" means any person appointed or elected to any governmental or advisory agency including local school boards, whether or not he receives compensation or other emolument of office.

"Parent-subsidiary relationship" means a relationship that exists when one corporation directly or indirectly owns shares possessing more than 50 percent of the voting power of another corporation.

"Personal interest" means a financial benefit or liability accruing to an officer or employee or to a member of his immediate family. Such interest shall exist by reason of

- ownership in a business if the ownership interest exceeds three percent of the total equity of the business;
- annual income that exceeds, or may reasonably be anticipated to exceed, \$5,000 from ownership in real or personal property or a business;
- salary, other compensation, fringe benefits, or benefits from the use of property, or any combination thereof, paid or provided by a business or governmental agency that exceeds, or may reasonably be anticipated to exceed \$5,000 annually;
- ownership of real or personal property if the interest exceeds \$5,000 in value and excluding ownership in a business, income or salary, other compensation, fringe benefits or benefits from the use of property;
- personal liability incurred or assumed on behalf of a business if the liability exceeds three percent of the asset value of the business; or
- an option for ownership of a business or real or personal property if the ownership interest will consist of the first or fourth bullets above.

"Personal interest in a contract" means a personal interest which an officer or employee has in a contract with a governmental agency, whether due to his being a party to the contract or due to a personal interest in a business which is a party to the contract.

"Personal interest in a transaction" means a personal interest of an officer or employee in any matter considered by his agency. Such personal interest exists when an officer or employee or a member of his immediate family has a personal interest in property or a business, or governmental agency, or represents or provides services to any individual or business and such property, business, or represented or served individual or business is

- the subject of the transaction or
- may realize a reasonably foreseeable direct or indirect benefit or detriment as a result of

the action of the agency considering the transaction

Notwithstanding the foregoing, such personal interest in a transaction shall not be deemed to exist where (a) an elected member of a local governing body serves without remuneration as a member of the board of trustees of a not-for-profit entity and such elected member or member of his immediate family has no personal interest related to the not-for-profit entity or (b) an officer~~{}~~ or employee~~{, or elected member}~~ of a local governing body is appointed by the local governing body to serve on a governmental agency~~{, or an officer, employee, or elected member of a separate local governmental agency formed by a local governing body is appointed to serve on a governmental agency,}~~ and the personal interest in the transaction of the governmental agency is a result of the salary, other compensation, fringe benefits, or benefits provided by the local governing body ~~{for the separate governmental agency}~~ to the officer or employee.

"Transaction" means any matter considered by any governmental or advisory agency, whether in a committee, subcommittee, or other entity of that agency or before the agency itself, on which official action is taken or contemplated.

D. Special Anti-Nepotism Rules Relating to School Board Members and Superintendents

1. The School Board may not employ or pay, and the Superintendent may not recommend for employment, the father, mother, brother, sister, spouse, son, daughter, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law, of the Superintendent or of a School Board member. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit the employment, promotion, or transfer within the school division, of any person within a relationship described above when such person
 - has been employed pursuant to a written contract with the School Board or employed as a substitute teacher or teacher's aide by the School Board prior to the taking of office of any member of the Board or Superintendent; or
 - has been employed pursuant to a written contract with the School Board or employed as a substitute teacher or teacher's aide by the School Board prior to the inception of such relationship; or
 - was employed by the School Board at any time prior to June 10, 1994, and had been employed at any time as a teacher or other employee of any Virginia school board prior to the taking of office of any member of the School Board or Superintendent.

A person employed as a substitute teacher may not be employed to any greater extent than he was employed by the School Board in the last full school year prior to the taking of office of such board member or Superintendent or to the inception of such relationship.

2. The School Board may employ or pay, and the Superintendent may recommend for employment, any family member of the Superintendent or of a School Board member provided that
 - a) the member certifies that he had no involvement with the hiring decision; and

b) the Superintendent certifies to the remaining members of the school board in writing that the recommendation is based upon merit and fitness and the competitive rating of the qualifications of the individual and that no member of the board had any involvement with the hiring decision.

3. No family member (as listed in section D.1., above) of any employee may be employed by the School Board if the family member is to be employed in a direct supervisory and/or administrative relationship either supervisory or subordinate to the employee. The employment and assignment of family members in the same organizational unit is discouraged.

E. General Rules Governing Public Conduct by School Board Members Regarding Gifts and Favors

1. Prohibited Conduct

Neither the School Board collectively, nor any member of the board, shall solicit or

- accept money, or anything else of value, for services performed within the scope of his or her official duties other than his or her regular compensation, expenses or other remuneration;
- offer or accept money, or anything else of value, for or in consideration of obtaining employment, appointment, or promotion in the school division;
- offer or accept any money or anything else of value for or in consideration of the use of his public position to obtain a contract for any person or business with the school division. use for his or her own economic benefit, or anyone else's, confidential
- information gained by reason of his or her office, and which is not available to the public; accept any money, loan, gift, favor or service that might reasonably tend to
- influence the discharge of duties; accept any business or professional opportunity from which a School Board member may gain a financial benefit, where the member
- knows or should know that there is a reasonable likelihood that the opportunity is being offered with intent to influence his or her conduct in the performance of official duties.

2. Prohibited Gifts

For purposes of this subsection:

“Intangible gift” means a thing of temporary value or a thing that upon the happening of a certain event or expiration of a given date loses its value. “Intangible gift” includes entertainment, hospitality ticket, admission, or pass, transportation, lodgings and meals that are reportable on Schedule E of the disclosure form prescribed in Va. Code § 2.2-3117.

“Tangible gift” means a thing of value that does not lose its value upon the happening of a certain event or expiration of a given date. “Tangible gift” includes currency, negotiable

instruments, securities, stock options or other financial instruments that are reportable on Schedule E of the disclosure form prescribed in Va. Code § 2.2-3117. “Tangible gift” does not include payments or reimbursements received for an intangible gift.

“Person, organization or business” includes individuals who are officers, directors or owners of or who have a controlling ownership interest in such organization or business.

School Board members and employees required to file a Statement of Economic Interests as prescribed in VA. Code § 2.2-3117 (i) shall not solicit, accept or receive within any calendar year any single tangible gift with a value in excess of \$250 or a combination of tangible gifts with an aggregate value in excess of \$250 from any person that the member or employee knows or has reason to know is (a) a lobbyist registered pursuant to Va. Code § 2.2-418 et seq.; (b) a lobbyist’s principal as defined in Va. Code § 2.2-419; or (c) a person, organization or business who is a party to or is seeking to become a party to a contract with the School Board

School Board members and employees required to file a Statement of Economic Interests shall report any tangible gift with a value of \$250 or less or any intangible gift received from any person listed in clause (i) on Schedule E of such disclosure form; and shall report any payments for talks, meetings, and publications on Schedule D of such disclosure form.

The \$250 limitation imposed in accordance with this section shall be adjusted by the Council every five years, as of January 1 of that year, in an amount equal to the annual increases for that five-year period in the United States Average Consumer Price Index for all items, all urban consumers (CPI-U), as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the U.S. Department of Labor, rounded to the nearest whole dollar.

3. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit or apply to the acceptance by a teacher or other employee of Lynchburg City School Board of an award or payment in honor of meritorious or exceptional services performed by the teacher or employee and made by an organization exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

F. Prohibited Conduct Regarding Contracts

1. No School Board member shall have a personal interest in (i) any contract with the School Board or (ii) any contract with any government agency which is subject to the ultimate control of the Board;
2. Exceptions - The above prohibition shall not be applicable to:
 - A Board member's personal interest in a contract of employment provided the employment first began prior to the member becoming a member of the School Board

- Contracts for the sale by a governmental agency of services or goods at uniform prices available to the general public
- A contract awarded to a member of the School Board as a result of competitive sealed bidding where the School Board has established a need for the same or substantially similar goods through purchases prior to the election or appointment of the member to serve on the School Board; however, the member shall have no involvement in the preparation of the specifications for such contract, and the remaining members of the School Board, by written resolution, shall state that it is in the public interest for the member to bid on such contract
- The sale, lease or exchange of real property between an officer or employee and a governmental agency, provided the officer or employee does not participate in any way as such officer or employee in such sale, lease or exchange, and this fact is set forth as a matter of public record by the governing body of the governmental agency or by the administrative head thereof
- The publication of official notices
- An officer or employee whose sole personal interest in a contract with the governmental agency is by reason of income from the contracting firm or governmental agency in excess of \$10,000 per year, provided the officer or employee or a member of his immediate family does not participate and has no authority to participate in the procurement or letting of such contract on behalf of the contracting firm and the officer or employee either does not have authority to participate in the procurement or letting of the contract on behalf of his governmental agency or he disqualifies himself as a matter of public record and does not participate on behalf of his governmental agency in negotiating the contract or in approving the contract
- Contracts between an officer's or employee's governmental agency and a public service corporation, financial institution, or company furnishing public utilities in which the officer or employee has a personal interest provided the officer or employee disqualifies himself as a matter of public record and does not participate on behalf of his governmental agency in negotiating or approving the contract
- Contracts for the purchase of goods or services when the contract does not exceed \$500
- Grants or other payment under any program wherein uniform rates for, or the amounts paid to, all qualified applicants are established solely by the administering governmental agency
- An officer or employee whose sole personal interest in a contract with his own governmental agency is by reason of his marriage to his spouse who is employed by the same agency, if the spouse was employed by such agency for five or more years prior to marrying such officer or employee
- Employment contracts and other contracts entered into prior to August 1, 1987, provided such contracts were in compliance with the Virginia Conflict of Interests Act (or the Comprehensive Conflict of Interests Act) at the time of their formation and thereafter. Those contracts shall continue to be governed by the provisions of the appropriate prior Act. The employment by the same governmental agency of an officer or employee and spouse or any other relative residing in the same household shall not be deemed to create a material financial interest except when one of the persons is

employed in a direct supervisory and/or administrative position with respect to the spouse or other relative residing in his household and the annual salary of the subordinate is \$35,000 or more.

G. Prohibited Conduct Regarding Transactions

1. Each School Board member and School Board employee who has a personal interest in a transaction
 - a. shall disqualify himself from participating in the transaction if
 - (i) the transaction has application solely to property or a business or governmental agency in which he has a personal interest or a business that has a parent-subsiary or affiliated business entity relationship with the business in which he has a personal interest, or
 - (ii) he is unable to participate pursuant to subdivision G.1.b, G.1.c., or G.1.d. of this policy.

Any disqualification under this subsection shall be recorded in the School Board’s public records. The School Board member or employee shall disclose his personal interests as required by Va. Code § 2.2-3115E and shall not vote or in any manner act on behalf of the School Board in the transaction. The member or employee shall not

- (i) attend any portion of a closed meeting authorized by the Virginia Freedom of Information Act when the matter in which he has a personal interest is discussed; or
 - (ii) discuss the matter in which he has a personal interest with other governmental officers or employees at any time.
 - b. may participate in the transaction if he is a member of a business, profession, occupation, or group of three or more persons, the members of which are affected by the transaction, and he complies with the declaration requirements of Va. Code § 2.2-3115 G;
 - c. may participate in the transaction when a party to the transaction is a client of his firm if he does not personally represent or provide services to such client and he complies with the declaration requirements of Va. Code § 2.2-3115 H; or
 - d. may participate in the transaction if it affects the public generally, even though his personal interest, as a member of the public, may also be affected by that transaction.
2. Disqualification under this section shall not prevent any employee having a personal interest in a transaction in which his employer is involved from representing himself or a member of his immediate family in such transaction provided he does not receive compensation for such representation and provided he complies with the disqualification and relevant disclosure requirements of this policy.
 3. If disqualifications under subsection 1.a. of this section leave less than the number required by law to act, the remaining member or members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business and have authority to act for the board by majority vote, unless a

unanimous vote of all members is required by law, in which case authority to act shall require a unanimous vote of remaining members.

4. The provisions of this section shall not prevent a board member or employee from participating in a transaction merely because such a board member or employee is a defendant in a civil legal proceeding concerning such transaction.

H. Disclosure Requirements for School Board Members

1. School Board members ~~will~~ file, as a condition of assuming office, with the ~~clerk of the school board~~ **{Council}** a disclosure statement of their personal interests and other information as is specified on the form set forth in Va. Code § 2.2-3117 and ~~shall~~ thereafter file such statement ~~annually on or before January 15.~~ ***{semiannually by December 15 for the preceding six-month period complete through the last day of October and by June 15 for the preceding six-month period complete through the last day of April.}***
2. Any board member or employee who is disqualified from participating in a transaction under Section G.1.a. of this policy, or otherwise elects to disqualify himself, shall forthwith make disclosure of the existence of his interest, including the full name and address of the business and the address or parcel number for the real estate if the interest involves a business or real estate and such disclosure shall be reflected in the school board's public records in the division superintendent's office for a period of five (5) years.
3. Any board member or employee who is required to disclose his interest under Section G.1.b. of this policy shall declare his interest by stating:
 - the transaction involved;
 - the nature of the board member's or employee's personal interest affected by the transaction;
 - that he is a member of a business, profession, occupation, or group the members of which are affected by the transaction; and
 - that he is able to participate in the transaction fairly, objectively, and in the public interest.

The board member or employee shall either make his declaration orally to be recorded in written minutes of the board or file a signed written declaration with the clerk of the board, who shall, in either case, retain and make available for public inspection such declaration for a period of five years from the date of recording or receipt. If reasonable time is not available to comply with the provisions of this subsection prior to participation in the transaction, the board member or employee shall prepare and file the required declaration by the end of the next business day. The board member or employee shall also orally disclose the existence of the interest during each School Board meeting at which the

transaction is discussed and such disclosure shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

4. A board member or employee who is required to declare his interest pursuant to subdivision G.1.c. of this policy shall declare his interest by stating

- (i) the transaction involved;
- (ii) that a party to the transaction is a client of his firm;
- (iii) that he does not personally represent or provide services to the client; and
- (iv) that he is able to participate in the transaction fairly, objectively, and in the public interest.

The board member or employee shall either make his declaration orally to be recorded in written minutes of the board or file a signed written declaration with the clerk of the board who shall, in either case, retain and make available for public inspection such declaration for a period of five years from the date of recording or receipt. If reasonable time is not available to comply with the provisions of this subsection prior to participation in the transaction, the board member or employee shall prepare and file the required declaration by the end of the next business day.

Adopted: June 4, 2013

Revised: December 16, 2014

Legal Ref.: Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §§ 2.2-3101, 2.2-3102, 2.2-3103, 2.2-3104.1, 2.2-3108, 2.2-3109, 2.2-3110, 2.2-3112, 2.2-3115, 2.2-3119.

Cross Ref.: CBCA Disclosure Statement Required of Superintendent
GCCB Employment of Family Members

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: G-1

Attachments: Yes

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Anthony E. Beckles, Sr., Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Request for Reallocation of Budget

Summary/Description:

The school administration has recognized a need to reallocate funds to purchase various equipment and supplies throughout the school division.

PROJECTS

Construction of a painting booth	\$10,000
Replacement of doors at the facility	\$12,000
Replacement of carpet in the library	\$25,000
Repairs to sidewalks around the school	\$ 9,000
Repairs to sidewalks around the school	\$ 8,000
Repairs to sidewalks and wheelchair lift	\$10,000
Replace two exterior doors	\$ 5,000
Purchase paint supplies for summer	\$ 5,000
Purchase custodial supplies for the summer	\$10,000
Repair Brick Mortar Joints	\$ 5,000
Purchase of a shed for P.E.	\$10,000
Upgrading of fire panel	\$ 3,000
Upgrading of fire panel	\$ 5,000
Replacement of carpet and vinyl flooring	\$ 9,000
Upgrading of the restrooms	\$10,000
Upgrading of the restrooms	\$ 5,000
Installation of irrigation system on the softball field	\$15,000
New traffic, parking, and property signs and posts	\$14,000

Total Projects **\$170,000**

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: G-1

Attachments: Yes

Equipment & Supplies

Purchase of a mower	\$12,000
Purchase of a aerator	\$ 3,000
Purchase of a groomer (swap)	\$ 5,000
Purchase of mulch and landscaping plants	\$18,000
Purchase of seeds and fertilizer	\$ 8,000
Motor Alignment Tool	\$ 2,000
Purchase of Press Fit Tool	\$ 4,000
Purchase of vehicle GPS system	\$ 8,000
Purchase of 10 wet vac at \$500.00 each	\$ 5,000
Purchase of five (5) floor scrubbers @ \$8,000 each	\$40,000
Purchase of a over seeder	\$ 8,000
Replacement of the delivery box truck	\$60,000
Purchase of a turf sweeper	\$ 3,000
Purchase of a salt spreader	\$10,000
Purchase of chairs and tables for student cafetria	\$27,994
Purchase of table bench for student cafeteria	\$ 6,000
Purchase of office chairs and curtains	\$ 2,500

Total Equipment & Supplies **\$222,494**

Operating Expenses

Repairs to boilers	\$13,000
Replacement of fire panel	\$10,000
Roof Repairs	\$ 5,000
Repairs to chiller	\$15,000
Replacement of control panel	\$10,000
Repairs to fire sprinkler system	\$ 3,000
Replacement of intercom system	\$ 9,000
Upgrading of HW control vales	\$ 7,000
Pest control service	\$ 4,000
Waste/recycle services	\$25,000

Total Operating expenses **\$101,000**

TOTAL REQUESTS **\$493,494**

=====

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: G-1

Attachments: Yes

Reallocation of budgets

Given school board approval, the funds to purchase the items will come from available funds in the existing operating budget.

Various Salaries, Benefits and Non-Personnel accounts \$493,494

The school administration requests this budget adjustment be approved for the 2014-15 school year in order to fund these one-time purchases.

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on: 05/05/15

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive the agenda report as an informational item and consider action at the school board meeting on May 5, 2015.

**Lynchburg City Schools
FY2014-2015 Budget Reallocation Requests II**

4/23/2015 12:29

School/Location	Item Description	Comp. Plan Relationship	Projected Cost	New, Repair or Replacement	Notes
PROJECTS					
Fac/Transportation	Construction of a painting booth	Operations	\$10,000	New	
Fac/Transportation	Replacement of doors at the facility	Operations	\$12,000	Replacement	
Linkhome Middle School	Replacement of carpet in the library	Operations	\$25,000	Replacement	
T.C. Miller	Repairs to sidewalks around the school	Operations	\$9,000	Repairs	
Fort Hill Community School	Repairs to sidewalks around the school	Operations	\$8,000	Repairs	
E.C. Glass	Repairs to sidewalks and wheelchair lift	Operations	\$10,000	Repairs	
Fort Hill Community School	Replacement of two exterior doors	Operations	\$5,000	Replacement	
All Locations	Purchase paint supplies for summer	Operations	\$5,000	New	
All Locations	Purchase custodial supplies for the summer	Operations	\$10,000	New	
E.C. Glass	Repair Brick Mortar Joints	Operations	\$5,000	New	
Heritage Elementary School	Purchase of a shed for P.E.	Operations	\$10,000	New	
Dunbar Middle School	Upgrading of fire panel	Operations	\$3,000	Upgrade	
Linkhome Elementary School	Upgrading of fire panel	Operations	\$5,000	Upgrade	
Heritage Elementary School	Replacement of carpet and vinyl flooring	Operations	\$9,000	Replacement	
Dunbar Middle School	Upgrading of the restrooms	Operations	\$10,000	Upgrade	
R.S. Payne	Upgrading of the restrooms	Operations	\$5,000	Upgrade	
E.C. Glass	Installation of irrigation system on the softball field	Operations	\$15,000	New	
All Locations	New traffic, parking, and property signs and posts	Operations	\$14,000	Upgrade	
TOTAL PROJECTS			\$170,000		
EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES					
Facilities (Grounds)	Purchase of a mower	Operations	\$12,000	New	
Facilities (Grounds)	Purchase of a aerator	Operations	\$3,000	New	
Facilities (Grounds)	Purchase of a groomer (swap)	Operations	\$5,000	New	
All Locations	Purchase of mulch and landscaping plants	Operations	\$18,000	New	
All Locations	Purchase of seeds and fertilizer	Operations	\$8,000	New	
Facilities (Maint)	Purchase of motor alignment tool	Operations	\$2,000	New	
Facilities (Maint)	Purchase of press fit tools	Operations	\$4,000	New	
Facilities (Maint)	Purchase of vehicle GPS system	Operations	\$8,000	New	
Facilities (Cust.)	Purchase of 10 wet vac at \$500.00 each	Operations	\$5,000	New	
Facilities (Cust.)	Purchase of five (5) floor scrubbers @ \$8,000 each	Operations	\$40,000	New	
Facilities (Grounds)	Purchase of a over seeder	Operations	\$8,000	New	
Facilities (Grounds)	Replacement of the delivery box truck	Operations	\$60,000	Replacement	
Facilities (Grounds)	Purchase of a turf sweeper	Operations	\$3,000	New	
Facilities (Grounds)	Purchase of a salt spreader	Operations	\$10,000	New	
E.C. Glass	Purchase of chairs and tables for student cafeteria	Operations	\$27,994	New	
Sheffield Elementary School	Purchase of table bench for student cafeteria	Operations	\$6,000	New	
Heritage Elementary School	Purchase of office chairs and curtains	Operations	\$2,500	New	
TOTAL EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES			\$222,494		

**Lynchburg City Schools
FY2014-2015 Budget Reallocation Requests II**

OPERATING EXPENSES					
Fac/Transportation and HHS	Repairs to boilers	Operations	\$13,000	Repairs	Boiler Repairs at Facilities (\$5,000) and Heritage High School (\$8,000)
Bedford Hills Elementary School	Replacement of fire panel	Operations	\$10,000	Replacement	Main fire panel failed beyond repair
Dunbar Middle School	Roof Repairs	Operations	\$5,000	Repairs	Necessary to maintain the building
E.C. Glass	Repairs to chiller	Operations	\$15,000	Repairs	Necessary to provide cooling
Bass Elementary School	Replacement of control panel	Operations	\$10,000	Replacement	BAS control panel failed beyond repair
R.S. Payne	Repairs to fire sprinkler system	Operations	\$3,000	Repairs	Repair leaks on fire sprinkler system
Perrymont Elementary School	Replacement of intercom system	Operations	\$9,000	Replacement	System is failing and Replacement parts unavailable
Heritage Elementary School	Upgrading of HW control vales	Operations	\$7,000	Upgrade	
All Locations	Pest control service	Operations	\$4,000	Repairs	Price increase with New contract
All Locations	Waste/recycle services	Operations	\$25,000	Repairs	Price increase with New contract
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES			\$101,000		
TOTAL REQUESTS			\$493,494		

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: G-2

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Anthony E. Beckles, Sr., Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Implementation of Online Payment Portal

Summary/Description:

Lynchburg City Schools is currently utilizing *MySchoolBucks*, formerly *Prepay Café*, through the School Nutrition Department. LCS parents have the ability to pay for their child's lunch online through *MySchoolBucks*. The online website gives the parent a step-by-step report of what their child is spending their money on and a sense of peace knowing that they do not have to send cash to the school with their child.

Early this school year, the school administration implemented *MySchoolBucks* school store as a pilot at five schools, Sheffield Elementary School, Robert S. Payne Elementary School, Sandusky Middle School, E.C. Glass High School, and Heritage High School. The results of the pilot programs have revealed that users like the ease and convenience of making payments online instead of sending cash with students. As we continue to find ways to efficiently and effectively use technology, LCS has decided to expand the ability for parents and students to pay online by implementing *MySchoolBucks* school store division wide. Parents and students will be able to pay all student activity fees online, such as, field trips, purchase tickets for sporting activities, club and drama events, etc.

The purposes for implementing *MySchoolBucks* school store is to:

- 1). Provide an onlinpayment portal for the convenience of parents and students,
- 2). Reduce the amount of time teachers spend collecting and tracking funds collected from students,
- 3). Reduce the amount of cash at the schools, and
- 4). Reduce the amount of time administrative staff spend processing and accounting for cash transactions.

LCS will also be taking advantage of *MySchoolBucks* Anywhere (MSB Anywhere). This mobile payment device accepts debit/credit cards and will enable parents to make payments at the school.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: G-2

Attachments: No

Payments will be able to be made by checks (ACH), debit and credits. The system will allow the school to set up payment plans if necessary. The cost for the online payment portal is a 3.95 percent per transaction fee (flat rate) that will be paid by the school division.

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive the agenda report as an informational item.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: G-3

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent
Ben W. Copeland, Assistant Superintendent of Operations and Administration

Subject: Capital Improvement Plan: Sandusky Elementary School

Summary/Description:

The 2014-15 capital improvement plan includes \$62,972 for additions and upgrades to the equipment, components, and duct system connected to air handler unit #3 located at Sandusky Elementary School. Included in the project is cleaning of all ductwork and mechanical equipment, installation of new motors, VFDs, DDC controls, and testing and balancing as described on project drawings and in the specification manual. The City of Lynchburg Office of Procurement and Purchasing has received a total of ___ bids on the project.

The school administration recommends _____ based on their bid of \$_____ which was the lowest bid. All bids received are listed below.

Bidder	Base Bid

Disposition: Action
 Information
 Action at Meeting on: 05/05/15

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board receive this agenda report as an informational item and consider action at the school board meeting on May 5, 2015.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: J-1

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent

Subject: Notice of Closed Meeting

Summary/Description:

Pursuant to the Code of Virginia §2.2-3711 (A) (1), the school board needs to convene a closed meeting for the purpose of discussing the following specific matters:

Employee Performance

Disposition: **Action**
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board approve a motion to enter into Closed Meeting in accordance with the Code of Virginia §2.2-3711 (A) (1) to discuss employee performance.

Agenda Report

Date: 04/28/15

Agenda Number: J-2

Attachments: No

From: Scott S. Brabrand, Superintendent

Subject: Certification of Closed Meeting

Summary/Description:

The Lynchburg City School Board certifies that, in the closed meeting just concluded, nothing was discussed except the matters specifically identified in the motion to convene in a closed meeting and lawfully permitted to be so discussed under the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act cited in that motion.

Disposition: **Action**
 Information
 Action at Meeting on:

Recommendation:

The superintendent recommends that the school board approve the Certification of Closed Meeting in accordance with the Code of Virginia §2.2-3712(D).